FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
AVEBIT] By

Keith Storton, Chair 3 s Stephen C. Lieberman, Executive Officer
Jeff Lee, Vice Chair !ﬁ; WIS i;;i Tricia Meyers, Clerk to the Board
Karen White, Board Member . _ 3_ OR"& David P. Hale, General Counsel

AGENDA

BOARD MEETING
FRIDAY, APRIL 16, 2021-9:00 A.M.

In the interest of the Governor’s Executive Order N-25-20, members of the Board or staff
will participate in this meeting via teleconference. Members of the public may listen to the
meeting and provide public comment via telephone by calling 1(833)611-0393. Members
of the public may also participate in the meeting electronically by submitting public
comments to the Clerk to the Board at tmeyers@fivecitiesfire.org no later than the meeting
start time of 9:00 A.M. Emailed comments will be received directly by the Clerk and will be
read out loud during the meeting. Public comment is subject to the customary 3-minute
time limit.

CALL TO ORDER

FLAG SALUTE

ROLL CALL

AGENDA REVIEW:

At this time the Board will review the order of business to be conducted and receive requests for,

or make announcements regarding any change(s) in the order of the day. The Board should, by
motion, approve the agenda as presented or as revised.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consideration of Approval of Minutes (MVEYERS)

Recommended Action: Approve the minutes of the Board Meeting of March 19, 2021.

COMMUNITY COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS:

This public comment period is an invitation to members of the community to present issues,
thoughts, or suggestions on matters not scheduled on this agenda. Comments should be limited
to those matters that are within the jurisdiction of the Board. The Brown Act restricts the Board



BOARD MEETING AGENDA — APRIL 16, 2021
PAGE 2

from taking formal action on matters not published on the agenda. In response to your comments,
the Chair or Vice Chair may:

e Direct Authority staff to assist or coordinate with you.
e A Board Member may state a desire to meet with you.
e It may be the desire of the Board to place your issue or matter on a future Board agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA:

The following routine items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group. The
recommendations for each item are noted. Any member of the public who wishes to comment on
any Consent Agenda item may do so at this time. Any Board Member, the Fire Chief or General
Counsel may request that any item be pulled from the Consent Agenda to permit discussion or
change the recommended course of action. The Board may approve the remainder of the
Consent Agenda on one motion.

1. Consideration of Cash Disbursement Activity(LIEBERMAN)

Recommended Action: Receive and file the listing of cash disbursements for the
period of March 1, 2021 through March 31, 2021.

CONTINUED BUSINESS:

None.
NEW BUSINESS:

a. Consideration of a Budget Appropriation and Authorization to Acquire

Replacement Fire Chief Vehicle(LIEBERMAN/VALENTINE)

Recommended Action: Approve the Resolution approving a budget appropriation and
authorizing the Fire Chief to execute needed agreements to purchase a replacement
vehicle.

b. Consideration of a Purchasing Policy for the Five Cities Fire Authority
(LIEBERMAN/HALE)
Recommended Action: Approve the Purchasing Policy for the use of the Authority to

acquire equipment, goods and services.

BOARD MEMBER ITEMS:

The following item(s) are placed on the agenda by a Board Member who would like to receive
feedback, obtain consensus to direct staff to prepare information, and/or request a formal agenda
report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal action can be taken.

None.



BOARD MEETING AGENDA - APRIL 16, 2021
PAGE 3

FIRE CHIEF ITEMS:
The following item(s) are placed on the agenda by the Fire Chief in order to receive comments,
feedback and/or request direction from the Board. No formal action can be taken.

a. Fire Chief Updates

GENERAL COUNSEL ITEMS:
The following item(s) are placed on the agenda by the General Counsel in order to receive
comments, feedback and/or request direction from the Board. No formal action can be taken.

None.

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS:
Correspondence/Comments as presented by the Board.

CLOSED SESSION:

a. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS pursuant to Government Code Section
54957 .6:

Agency Negotiators: Che Johnson - Law Firm of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore
Nicole Valentine — Accounting Manager — Arroyo Grande
Karla Mattocks - Human Resources Coordinator-Grover Beach
Tashina Ureno — Human Resources Manager-Arroyo Grande

Represented Employees: International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) Local 4403

ADJOURNMENT

Fedededededededododededededededededededededekk kk ke ded ok kkk

All staff reports or other written documentation, including any supplemental material distributed to
a majority of the Board within 72 hours of a regular meeting, relating to each item of business on
the agenda are available for public inspection during regular business hours in the Clerk to the
Board's office, 140 Traffic Way, Arroyo Grande. If requested, the agenda shall be made available
in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans with
Disabilities Act. To make a request for disability-related modification or accommodation, contact
the Clerk to the Board's office at 805-473-5490 as soon as possible and at least 48 hours prior to
the meeting date.

Any documentation or materials to be submitted by the General Public for consideration by the
Board shall be submitted to the Clerk to the Board by email at tmeyers@fivecitiesfire.org, no later
than 24 hours prior to the above scheduled time for the Five Cities Fire Authority Board meeting.
Failure to submit documents or any materials at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled time for the
Board meeting shall be grounds for the Board to reject consideration or review of those items
unless otherwise required by state or Iocal laws.



BOARD MEETING AGENDA - APRIL 16, 2021
PAGE 4

This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. Agendas
are posted at the Arroyo Grande City Hall, 300 E. Branch Street, Arroyo Grande, Headquarters ~
Station 1, 140 Traffic Way, Arroyo Grande, the Grover Beach City Hall, 154 S. 8™ Street, Grover
Beach, Station 2, 701 Rockaway Avenue, Grover Beach, and Oceano Community Services

District, 1655 Front Street, Oceano.

e e e e v e e e Je o v v de e e e e e Fede dededededeodehekeokekekokoke

Agenda reports can be accessed and downloaded from the Five Cities Fire Authority Website at
www.fivecitiesfireauthority.org.




MINUTES

FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING
FRIDAY, MARCH 19, 2021

Due to the County of San Luis Obispo’s Executive Order to shelter at home and Pursuant to
the Governor’s Executive Order N-25-20, members of the Board and staff participated in this
meeting via teleconference. Members of the public were invited to participate in the meeting
by listening in and could comment electronically by submitting public comments to the Clerk

to the Board at imeyers@fivecitiesfire.org.

CALL TO ORDER:
Chair Storton called the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) Board meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

FLAG SALUTE:
Chair Storton led the Flag Salute.

ROLL CALL:
FCFA Board: Chair Keith Storton, Vice Chair Jeff Lee and Board Member Karen White.

FCFA Staff Present: Fire Chief Stephen Lieberman, General Counsel Dave Hale and Clerk to the Board
Tricia Meyers.

AGENDA REVIEW:
Action: Board Member White moved, Vice Chair Lee seconded, and the motion passed unanimously to approve

the Five Cities Fire Authority’'s Agenda by a roll call vote.

AYES: White, Lee, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Consideration of Approval of Minutes
Action: Approved the minutes of the Board Meeting on February 19, 2021 with a roll call vote.

AYES: White, Lee, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

COMMUNITY COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS:

None.



Minutes: Five Cities Fire Authority Board Meeting Page 2
Friday, March 19, 2021

CONSENT AGENDA:
Chair Storton asked the Board Members if they had questions on the consent agenda. Hearing none, he then

invited members of the public to comment. No public comment was received.

Action:

Board Member White moved, and Vice Chair Lee seconded the motion to approve the Consent Agenda

Items. The motion passed on the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:

White, Lee, Storton
None

ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

1.

Consideration of Cash Disbursement Activity.
Action: Received and filed the listing of cash disbursements for the period of February 1, 2021 through

February 28, 2021.

Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the Fire Chief’s Employment Agreement.
Action: Approved amendment No. 4 to the Fire Chief/Executive Officer's employment agreement.

Consideration of Approval of the Amendment to the General Counsel’s Employment

Agreement.
Action: Approved amended employment agreement for the General Counsel.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

None.

CONTINUED BUSINESS:

None.

NEW BUSINESS:

Consideration of Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and Mid-Year Budget Review for
Fiscal Year 2020-21. Chief Lieberman presented a mid-year budget report and FY 2019-20 Audit
report. Chief Lieberman reported that an independent accounting firm has completed their review of
Five Cities Fire Authority’s(FCFA) financial records for Fiscal Year ending 2019-20. The auditors
confirmed the financial position of the financial statement records. Next, Chief Lieberman presented the
mid-year budget review. The report included purchase of radio equipment previously approved by the
Board, which was offset by the sale of surplus radio equipment. The mid-year budget reflected
unanticipated strike team revenue in the amount of $487,000. The report included a request to formally
assign $130,000 of fund balance for future vehicle replacement. Increased overtime costs are reflected
due to an open Captain position and a Firefighter out on worker's compensation, however there will be
a salary savings for the unfilled Office Assistant position. The fund balance reflects a reserve of 14.3%
at this time. Staff recommended bringing back a fund balance reserve policy after the Authority gets the
through the third provision amendment to the Memorandum of Agreement. Chief Lieberman informed
the Board that vehicle maintenance continues to be a vulnerability for FCFA. Chair Storton asked if the
Authority has anticipated salary negotiations for employees. Chief Lieberman explained that there will
be salary increase assumptions included in the budget document for FY 2021-22. No public comment

was received.



Minutes: Five Cities Fire Authority Board Meeting Page 3
Friday, March 19, 2021

Action: Vice Chair Lee moved, and Board Member White seconded the motion to receive, approve and
file the financial statements for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and approved amended mid-year budget for Fiscal
year 2020-21. No public comment received. The motion passed on the following roll call vote:

AYES: Lee, White, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

BOARD MEMBER ITEMS:

a. Consideration of Changing Board Meeting Time. The Board had a discussion on changing the time

and day of the Five Cities Fire Authority Board meeting. No public comment was received.
Action: Vice Chair Lee moved to change the Board meeting start time to 9:00 A.M. and the day will
remain the same on the third Friday of each month. Board Member White seconded the motion. The
motion passed on a roll call vote:

AYES: Lee, White, Storton

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

GENERAL COUNSEL ITEMS:

None.

FIRE CHIEF ITEMS:

a.

Chief Lieberman reported that FCFA staff is currently participating in several training opportunities for
career development. FCFA is hosting many of these courses. Outside agencies have also signed up
to attend the classes.

The Ford Explorer will be transported to Washington soon.

The Purchasing Policy will be on the April agenda after further formatting.

Friends of Five Cities Fire has purchased a forcible entry training prop for FCFA. It has a value of over
$7,000.00.

Friends of Five Cities Fire will attend a photo op with the UTV next Friday.

Chief Lieberman informed the Board of staffing challenges at Station 3 in Oceano. FCFA currently has
two Reserve Firefighers that work out of Station 3. One is currently looking for a full time career with
other departments. Chief Lieberman has adjusted the staffing policy to allow a full time Firefighter to
work at Station 3 if Oceano is left uncovered by a Reserve Firefighter for no more than 24 hours. This
will have an impact on the budget. Staff will bring more information to the Board at a later date on
possible solutions to the staffing challenges.



Minutes: Five Cities Fire Authority Board Meeting Page 4
Friday, March 19, 2021

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS:
Vice Chair Lee reported that the Coastal Commission has approved a change to the accessibility to the Oceano
Dunes. The transition will take place in three years. The change in location of camping sites could increase call

volume for FCFA.

CLOSED SESSION:

None.

ADJOURNMENT:
Chair Storton adjourned the meeting at 10:39 a.m. The next Board meeting is scheduled for April 16, 2021, at

9:00 a.m. via teleconference.

KEITH STORTON, CHAIR

ATTEST:

TRICIA MEYERS, CLERK TO THE BOARD



STAFF REPORT

Chair and Board Members MEETING DATE: April 16, 2021

FROM: Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief
Margaret Conway-Pearson, City of Arroyo Grande Interim Accounting Manager

SUBJECT: Consideration of Cash Disbursement Ratification

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) Board of Directors review, receive and accept the
attached listing of cash disbursements for the period March 1 through March 31, 2021.

BACKGROUND

The FCFA JPA agreement identifies the City of Arroyo Grande as the agency providing financial services to the fire
department. The City processes payroll and accounts payable on behalf of the FCFA. Historically, the City has
processed FCFA payroll on City checks (using a City bank account). The City recovers 100% of these payroll costs
along with related staff time. FCFA staff is working with the City to determine if payroll can be processed utilizing
FCFA checks/bank account.

Cash disbursements are made weekly based on the submission of all required documentation and supporting
invoices for costs incurred/services rendered. The Fire Chief reviews all disbursement documents before they are
submitted to the City for processing.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is a $427,560.16 fiscal impact that includes the following items:

«  Accounts Payable Checks $ 81,903.40
« Payroll and Benefit Checks $ 345,656.76

ALTERNATIVES

The following alternatives are provided for the Board's consideration:
1. Approve the staff recommendation

2. Do not approve the staff recommendation

3. Provide other direction.

ATTACHMENTS

March 1 through March 31, 2021 Accounts Payable Register
March 1 through March 31, 2021 Payroll and Check Register



PREPARED BY
Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief



B ) AJNIOHIWT 1SVOD HLNOS 109G L L2t 062 £699 uonoadsu 1q00°cg 06SL 1£02/G0/€0 m

AONIDHINT 1SYOD HLNOS| 109G LIZF 062 059} paq 1ey} uondadsul 1q|00°G8 06SL 120z/s0/£0| 8L

SVOTVOOS|  Lovs'tizro6e! SIDIAYTS SVYD|LE°LT8 68GL 120Z/S0/E0| LL

ONI ‘AH3dIodan3 L8 H 9/25°L L2y 062 Siey W xal 09 188'cS 88GL 1¢02/S0/€0| 9L

ONI ‘FHYMOHVYH 3OV SHIANIN| 1098 LIZY 062 W sjolyan |z LE £85L 1202/S0/€0| Sl

i _ ONI'SHYMAHVH 30V SHININ|  1095°L 121062 W S[OIYeA |LLOE (8GL L202/S0/E0]  +1
i ONI ‘JUYMAYVH 30V SHIANIN|  §SZ5L12H 062 soyddns 1dep |eioeds |61°65 L8GL 1202/S0/€0] €1
ITVHJAIAVA|  €0€S°LLZY 062 120Z ge4 saolAJes |euoissejold 06606 98GL l20e/so/ie0] 2L

AN B HMOOTSHNVHL|  #095° 112 062 UiWpe - qoLn| Joop/s3d0| aceldai (g1 00 G8GL teoez/so/en| L1

- ONI‘dvm3aar 809S°LL2¥ 062 o} 18¢e°LE ¥8SL 1202/S0/€0| Ol

ONI ‘dvm3gar L09S’L L2062 S19l |6%°G9 ¥8SL 1202/S0/€0 6

L SNOILO3INNOD SSOHO 909571 Fww.omw_ luswdinbe B soipes aigeuod [9g°218'€ £8GL 1€02/50/€0 8

SOINOYLD3T13 LSVOD 909G L I2'062 sued olpel 3|Iqow |25 EE Cc8SL 1202/S0/€0 L

SNOILVOINNWAOD HIALHVHD|  LO¥S LLZY 062 A € uonels(0z'es 18SL 1202/S0/E0| 9

| N SNOILYOINNWINOD HILHVYHO|  LO¥S'LIZY 062 A Z Uoiels|zg gl L 18SL 1202/S0/E0| S
S1Hvd 01NV 1SANDYHYD|  L09S'LIZy 062 sbnid yeds|G} 9z 0852 1202/S0/E0| ¥

N ______SlYvd OlNV ISINDHVYD| 109G’ LIZY 062 sbnid >peds|z/g 08SL 120e/so/e0| €
| 181V €0¥S L ICh 062 I SANIT INOHJ- G8LEE0 | B6EGANYE |EE ¥SL 6LSL 1202/50/€0 4
e ONUINIWGINOI I WVASTIY|  zieg'tieroee| Josuoy - swoqiowunapocboiowifegvee  feess | eozsoro| |
R L o JWEN ._O_ucm>. #IW00Y _.._O_un_tomwn_ junowy # 300UD 3jeq v_om..._ow [

L INJWHOVLLY

1202 ‘L€ HOYVIN -1 HOYVIN

ONILSITMO3HD

ALIMOHINY 3414 S31LI0 3AI-



. VOIdINY 40 MNvd 8095°112¥'062 aseo auoyd 3q - vew(em| L/ €5 L6GL L20e/LLeD| 6¢

~ VOIdaWY 40 YNV €0VS°L LY 062 Wwooz (66°1 L6GL L202/11e0] 8E

YOIdaNWY 40 YNvd €0¥s’LIZY 062 olpnis uf ||e2100°SE L6SL Leoe/Llieol LE

| VOId3NY 40 MNve €0¥S’L L2y’ 062 BOUBIBJUOI 8INJBS 68" LE L6SL L2oc/LL/en; 9¢€
YOIHIAY 40 MNve 90€S’L L2V 062 abpeq pi - swajsAs piea eydie [oe c98 LBGL L20Z/L1L/ED| SE

B . VOIdIWY 40 MNv4 i Loes” — Levo6e yaedsip Allep (00°GLY L6SL L202/LL/E0] ¥E
| VOIHINY 40 »Nvd €LES'LIZY 062 £1S Jossaidwoo Jje jodep ewoy |28 98¢ L6GL L20c/LLIE0| €€
L VOIH3IWY 40 YNvd 8025°L L2 062 sdsn |ov'LE L6SL L20e/LLIED] <€

VOIdIWY 4O MNvVE 802S°Ll2y 062 sdnfge/ L6GL L20e/LL/En] LE

B VOIRIINY 40 MNvd L0CS’ L L2y 062 lodap 80140 {20°95 LBSL Lc0c/LL/E0] O

181v| €0vS'Ligk 062 € sByo wnauio Ajyiuow |z6°€/ L 966 L202/LL/IE0] 62

181v| E0¥S'LIZy 062 Z - sBU2 U2 Ajyuow |26°€LL 96GL Lc0Z/iL/e0| 82

~ IANVHO OAOHHY 40 ALID LO¥S'LIey 062 uonebul S334 YIMISHIALYM |FE8LL G6SL Leoe/LLen) Le

JANVHO OAOHYY 40 ALID LovS'LIey'06C mallen Oyl S334 HIM3IS/JIALVYM |SE'E6C G6SL Leoe/LL/en| 9

JANVHD OAOHYHY 4O ALID Lovs'Ligy o6ec WelpAy ey S35 YAMIAS/HILYM[EL'9 G6GL leog/LL/en| S2

AHVINVHY|  €0ES'LLZP 062 [equas sayddns dous [€9°8€Z V6SL L20Z/LL/ED| V2

| L oT1'vsn w<muw__.< €0ES’L L2y 062 ) [e1uas uabAxojuobie (95'86 €6GL (FAVARNIN] EESA
ONI' D33 INIOJATHOM|  9025°L 121062 saliddns % Juswdinbe swa |48°2L2'S C6GL 1202/S0/€0] 2C

SSITIHIM NOZIHIA|  €0VS'LIZY 062 saul| suoud 1 |6Z'6LG 165L L202/s0/Ee0| 12

AONIOH3IWI 1SYOD HLNOS L09S°L L2y 062 L AN @2IAISS 100°L LY 06S. L20e/so/eo0! oz

I LINJWHOVL1LlVY

1202 ‘L€ HOMVI -1 HOYYIN
ONILSITMO3HO
ALIMOHLINY 3dI4 S3ILID AL




L VOIHINY 4O MNvVE|  L0Z9'tI2y 062 - Bie1d (888 L6SL L20Z/LLED| 85
VOIHIANY 4O MNVE|  L0Z9' L2 062 Onu) |21 01yl [91°E8 ) 1652 LZ0Z/LLIED| LS

VOIHINY 4O MNVE|  L0Z9°LLZF 062 Bumino dn xoid s1adwing saow (05 peY £6GL L20Z/LLIE0| 95

N VOIHIWY 4O 3INVE|  1029'LLZY 062 Bumuno dn youd - Bjw o10wW |66'65 L6GL L20Z/LLIED|  SS
VOIHIWY 4O MNvE|  €019'LIZy 062 abeio)s suoydi JeIuo a1y |66°0 LBSL L20Z/LLED| VS

| i YOIdINY JO MNVE|  8095°L121 062 jory s1efy (8692 L66L L2oz/LLie0| €5
- VOIHINY JOMNVE| 8095 LIZi'06Z 12N} 4o 112YS |$9°5Z £66L L20T/LLIED| 25
VOIHIWY 4O MINvE|  8095°LLZH 062 [eny jio lUs |og ey £6GL Leoz/LLieo| 1S

VOIH3INY 4O MNVE}  8095°L1Z¥ 062 [ony s19A {852 L6GL Lzoz/LLien| og

o VOIHIWY 30 MNvE|  9096°LIZF 062 peleje) swa abejsod sdsn (€60 L6GL L20Z/LLIED| 6F
VOIHIWY JOJINVE|  109G°L1ZY 062 Bueyp 110 05z} pIoj-ydeUBISEW |61°0L L L6SL L2oz/LLIE0| 8Y

VOId3NY JOMNvE| 1095 LL2H 062 sapeyq Jadm - sued oine A|jauo|91°gg £6G/ L20Z/LLIED| Ly

YOIHIWY JOMNvE|  L09S'LI2P 062 JaJojdxa pio} -yosusisew |G L et L6SL LZ0z/LLIE0| o

VOIHINY 4O 3NVE| 1095|2062 Jaso(dxa plo} - IleISp S|Iqow (00 00E 165 L20Z/LLED| SF

VOIHINY HJOMNVE|  109G°LL2v 062 90IAI9S AIN UOZBWE (66°96 L6GL 120Z/LLIED| ¥r

VOIMIWY 40 MNvE| 1095 LLZF 062 AN uozewe |91'98 LBSL L20Z/LLIED| €V

VOIHIWY 4O MNvE|  1095°L12F 062 1999 usruq sBypesy uozewe |pg gL L6GL LZ0Z/LLE0] 2v

VOIHINY 4O MNvE|  109S'L12¥ 062 Joysful jany uozewe gz 6zt L6SL Lzoz/LLieo| Ly

o o VOIMIWY 40 YNvVE| 10912y 062 o suejod 10} 1BISOWIBY} UOZBWE |88°0F £6GL L20Z/LLED| OF

nul - ] awieN .‘_o_ucw> # 100y . co._ﬁ:ommn_F., #508UD 812 Y201D)) 8ur

1202 ‘L€ HOYVIN -1 HOYVIN

L INFJWHOVLLY

ONILSITMO3HD
ALIMOHLNY 3HI4 S31LID JAIL



ONI ‘"vvm3adr

- 809G"}121 062 Ien} {82099 0092 L20z/LLiE0| 8L
OTIISNISMIND|  £09S'LIZv 062 99} Josn Ajujuow uef|Z6°g0L 665L 1zoziLLie0| 1L

- OTIISNISMIUD|  £095'412¥ 062 99} s185N AlUiuowW Yosew [26'80L 665L rzoz/iLigo| oL

S.1¥Vd 01NV 1SINOHYO|  L09S'LLZY 06T 1oy uoissiwsuen |y} Lz 865. \zoz/LLien] SL

S1Hvd 01NV 1SINOUVO| 1095’4 12H06Z JoA|IS ANSYD 0L0Z - Joll 110{8EE 865L 12oz/LLiE0]| L

B SLHVd OLNY LSINOUVD|  1095°} 12K 062 2£99 Auinn-Aejind Jaipi[vZ°z1 865L 1202/LLE0| €L
YOIV HOMNVE|  £095LIZ¥06Z uopdyosans oud aqope [y9°1 L9 L6SL L202/LLIED| L

VOIMINY 40 %NVE|  £09G'LLZb 062 99} uopoesuen |18°0 L65L 120e/kLien| 1L

VOIMTWY JONVE|  £095'L1ZY 062 21eMYOS LU (89°08 L65L 1202/LL/E0] 0L

VOIMINY JOXNVE|  9/25'L12Y 062 WblId 5g'gL L6SL L20z/LLE0] 69

VOIMINY JOMNVE|  9425'L12v 062 wJoyuN BAOG - B101S X}X8} |89z | L65L 120z/LL/E0| 89

i VOIMTWY JOINVE|  9/25°L12v'062, ojun ojjabue - eab eoljod el|29°gvL L65L L20Z/LL/E0| L9
B VOIMINY JOXNVE|  9£25°L 12062 wiojjun AeyBny - s1ouedypooy|g9 9oL L65L 1202/L1/E0| 99

VOIITWY 4O YNVE|  9/25'4L2Y 06T wuoyun 8A0g - [00l0gau [86'68 L65L L20z/LLIED| SO

VOIMIWY JOINVE|  9225°L12v 062 wuogun AayBny - JeaB xoedjjom |g6". L L L65L 120e/LLED| 9

VORIIWY JOMNVE|  9£25'L 12062 uuoyun uosnBie) - saube /g 16°G6E L6SL 120e/L1/ED| €9

- VOIMIWY 40 YNvE|  L0Z9'LLZY 06T SEeUUSIUE OIpE. - LB} BUUSIUE |G8'6Z1 L65L 1202/LL/E0| 29
VORIINY JOMNVE|  1029°L12h 062 swByl yosipeads |96°61L L £6GL L20Z/LL/ED| 19

VOIMIAY 4O YNvE|  1029'L 12y 062 Seuuajue Olpe) - ULJe} BuuSlLE |06'66 L65L 120Z/LLIED| 09

VOIRENY 40 9NVE|  Loz9'Lizr 6| 1equyBy - 1ouuals |00°068 L6L 120Z/4L/E0|  6S

L INJWHOVL1Y

1202 ‘L€ HOYVIN -1 HOYVYIN

ONILSITMOIHD

ALIHOHLNY 3HI4 S3ILID 3AI




SNOILYDINNNNOD mm._.m<IOv_ LOVS LLEZV 062 A}- L uoners|iyLle 029L 1¢0Z/92/€0| 801

] ALTIGON 181V|  €0¥S'L1Z¥ 062 sableyo ssejeum pedi|/ | 9ze 6194 Leoe/9e/eol LoL
. _ MHUVINVHY|  €0ES'LLZI 06T [ewal - selddns doys|(£9°9¢e2 819/ L20z/9z/c0| 901
|.l|. L . AlddNS TWIHOLINYF 34YO0UHd v09S°L L2k 062 sayddns Buiueap (06082 1192 Lzoe/eL/eo| soL
‘ ONI ‘FHYMAYYH 30V SHINIW ¥099°L 12062 senddns Bujuesio]gz 0L 919, Leoe/eL/en| oL

ONI ‘IHYMAYYH 30V S.HININ €099°LLEP 062 uawdinbe eqos|ye pe 9l9L 120z/61/€0} €01

ONI ‘FHYMAYYH 30V S.HINIW €L2S'L IV 062 ¥oolpedigL gl 9194 Leozg/eL/e0] zoL

ONI ‘IHYMAYYH 30V S.HINIW £L25°LL2P 062 |00} |lews|(Z6°¢cE 919, Lc0z/6L/e0| 1oL

o L ONI ‘FHYMAYYH 30V SHINIW SS¢SLiey 062 abejyos Aay|zL 0L 9194 L202/61/€0| 001
T HOV3d H3A0HD 4O %h_o LOV¥S'LICY 062 is1em - ssllIn |7°2Se SI9L Lcoc/e1/e0 Mm.
SHILHODI43HI4 "404d SAILID IAIL 9428’ L Leb 062 Slowsusap - ey wiojun|{00°sz 1 48:74 1202/61/€0| 86

H|‘ . ONI ‘vvmagar 809S°L L2 062 BYi9'8LY L €19L Le0e/eL/e0| L6
SNOILYJINNINNOD Y3 LHYHD LOYS' L2 062 uonels €€18€1010101LSPZ8#1908R|86' 0T [A%:74 L2coc/6L/e0) 96

SNOLLVYOINNWINOD H3LHVYHD LOVS'L _.Nw.omw uonels 0086€£20001-01SPE8#1908 (86" 0T 14574 Leoz/eL/en) S6

, SNOILYJINNWINOD Y3 LHVYHO _,o¢m.:.Nv..omN uonels 062252096001 SHZ8#1I00. (86 102 [A%:74 L202/6L/IED}  ¥6

S1HVd O1NY 1S3NDYHVD 109S°L 12 062 Anayo 0102 - Weq qu Ajod|egrpe LI9L L20Z/61/E0) €6

wbm_ o1Nv LS3INDHEVO L09S'L 12 062 Jesn sjeuBis wm|/6z1L 119 L20Z/6LIE0| €6

o 071 IvJIQ3N 3341 ANNOS 902G’ L2y 062 sal|ddns |edipaw |66 v LY 019L L202/61/€0 .ﬂ
ONI ‘SHOSSIHLNOD ¥anvg €099°L12¥'062 assy Jaidepy 102UU0D oMY YSIN (06825 | 6094 L20c/6L/E0] 06

- 1%1v €0vS'LL2Y 062 pdBe o3 auyl YN e eE 809L Lc0Z/61/E0] 68
OTTIDNY DIVHD 80SS°LI2P 062 luswaesinquuia) asuadx® Isiw(6E 9 £09L Leog/iel/ie0| 88

B “ONI 3TDADIH3LS €0ES’LICP 062 aoue|dwod ajes-Usis|gL 0g 909L Le0e/LL/ED] L8
AONIOYIWIT 1SVOD HLNOS L0951 L2y 062 siiedal Jojelpel-g yorul[eg G/ 8'e S09L Leoc/iL/en) 98

ONI ‘FHIL VIHYIN VINYS L09S’L1Ey 062 saun aoeidal | 6993|61"80% L ¥09L Leog/eol <8

‘OZ_ ‘JHIL VIHYIN VINYS 109G L L2V 062 saJi} aoe(dal €901 6E8'Z ¥09L Leoe/Leol 8

ONI ‘FHYMAYVYH 30V SHINIW L09S°L 12’062 sol|ddns 1dap |eweds|/psz €092 L2oe/L el €8

. ONI ‘TdvMAdYH 30V SHINIW L09G°L L2y 062 qoj Aoy 1oy Aisneq|se’s £09L L20e/Li/e0| 28
ONI ‘THYMAYYH 30V S.HININ GSGes’LIZy 062 swisy Buipiem 1 Aeneq|ge s €092 Leoe/Leo| 18

ONI LSISSY-34IT 902S°LLEy 06T se|iddns swafy | 0zy'L c09L L20Z/LL/e0| 08

ONI 'S1ONA0Hd NOSMY1 G62S’Lieh 062 soyddns Buipiem|06°2£ 1 109L L2c0Z/LL/ED| 6L

L SWEN IopUaA .uﬁo{. e g vonduosaq | unouy #3040  =e ey .Nrﬂ

} INJWHOV 1LY

120Z ‘L€ HOMVIN -L HOYVIN
ONILSITHO3HD
ALIFMOHLNY 344 SAILIO JAIL



ONI ‘IHVYMAYYH 30V S.HINIW

€LeS'LLEY 062

S|qed W00y S29L L202/92/e0| LI

ONI "FdvmadvH 30V SHIANIW L0es’ L2y o6e sivew asesd AIp(eg s/ G2oL 202/92/€0{ 9LL

JONVNIS ._.Zm_s_n__DOm_ Z<Om_,0_>_ 'dT|  €085°LLZ¥ 062 €9FEE 1BwOoIsno - auiBus ao18id (0L 0£8 Ve oL Leoe/9e/en| Shi

ONI'YYM3aar| 8095112y 062 PNy |EZ° 1601 £29L L202/92/e0| viL

SNOS % SILHNO N1 L09S’L L2V 062 (sfonuyyan Japjoy xiweid|zz 661 ceoL L202/9z/c0] €L

o SNOS B SILHNON 1|  2LeS'LL2y 06T sjued xawou - 1 1qIUD|€Z 02t ceoL L20z/9z/en| 2l

SNOS ®SILHNONT|  2L2S'Iiey06e ade) apeowieq|zg'G/ L (44214 L20c/9c/e0l LI

o - SNOS ® SILHNO N1 CLeSLIZR 062 S11BJ3ACD oAl BIumM [X|60°EL L ceoL 1202/9¢2/€0| OLL
- - mO_ZOmHMW_MM 1Sv0O| 9095°Llzy 062 - abexded olpei|gg yes'e L29L 1.20c/9g/c0| 601

I INJWHOV11Y

1202 ‘1€ HOYVI -1 HOYVIN

ONILSITMO3HD

ALIMOHLNY 3dId S3IL10 3AI




0V ENA’L8

€0ES"L 12V 062

30IAY3S FOVHIAIE INIZZYNOOL [e1Ua] BulyOBW 801 (BLLLL 629L 1202/92/E0| ¥T!

[ o SYOTVOOS|  L0¥S'LIZY 062 g uoness|6, zgl 829L +202/92/€0} €21
AlddNS TVIHOLINV 35VO0Hd|  #096°L 12062 sejiddns Buiuesplzz'9g L29L L2oz/9z/e0| Z2t

A1ddNS TYIHOLINVT 35VO0Hd|  #09G°L1Z¥ 062 sayddns Bujuesp|/1°0Lz £29L 1202Z/92/E0f 121

00 JIHLOFIT B SYD OIIOVd|  LOVS'LIZY 06T | uoness - salin(62°G6L L 9z9L | reozzeo| oz

ONI 'FHYMANVH 30V SHININ|  S095'L1Z¥ 062 X0q Joxee.q Joj shex|zL ST 5Z9L +202/92/€0| 611

o _ONI '3dVMAHVH 30V SHININ]  S095'tLZy 062 B _ 316 -poped|yg iz seoL | leoemseieol 8iL
f SWep Jopuap #1100 uondussag junowy #0940 aleq }oaynj aur

} INSWHOVLLY

1202 ‘L€ HOYVIA -1 HOYVYIN

ONILSITMOIHD

ALIHOHLNY 3HI4 S3ILID 3AIL



FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION

PAY PERIOD
02/19/2021 - 03/04/2021
3/12/2021
BY ACCOUNT
5101 Salaries Full time 68,937.33
5102 Salaries Part-Time - PPT -
5103 Salaries Part-Time - TPT 3,724.88
5105 Salaries OverTime 34,574.51
5106 Salaries Strike Team OT -
5108 Holiday Pay 3,708.19
5109 Sick Pay 1,568.64
5110 Annual Leave Buyback -
5111 Vacation Buyback -
5112 Sick Leave Buyback -
5113 Vacation Pay 5,226.24
5114 Comp Pay 4,786.72
5115 Annual Leave Pay 4,316.30
5121 PERS Retirement 20,363.91
5122 Social Security 9,855.77
5123 PARS Retirement -
5126 State Disability Ins. 1,063.58
5127 Deferred Compensation 125.00
5131 Health Insurance 17,101.93
5132 Dental Insurance 968.16
5133 Vision Insurance 267.04
5134 Life Insurance 121.52
5135 Long Term Disability 154.34
176.864.06

FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION
PAY PERIOD
03/05/2021 - 03/18/2021




3/26/2021

BY ACCOUNT

5101
5102
5103
5105
5106
5108
5109
5110
5111
5112
5113
5114
5115
5121
5122
5123
5126
5127
5131
5132
5133
5134
5135

Salaries Full time
Salaries Part-Time - PPT
Salaries Part-Time - TPT
Salaries OverTime
Salaries Strike Team OT
Holiday Pay

Sick Pay

Annual Leave Buyback
Vacation Buyback

Sick Leave Buyback
Vacation Pay

Comp Pay

Annual Leave Pay
PERS Retirement
Social Security

PARS Retirement

State Disability Ins.
Deferred Compensation
Health Insurance

Dental Insurance

Vision Insurance

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

82,017.16
5,082.00
24,133.12
3,717.21
1,238.40

981.60
1,733.76
279.83
20,811.84
9,100.77
959.02
125.00
17,101.93
968.16
267.04
121.52
154.34

168.792.70




EE
(o 8

STAFF REPORT

_ il
S
TO: Chair and Board Members MEETING DATE: April 16, 2021
FROM: Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief/Executive Officer

Nicole Valentine, Accounting Manager/City of Arroyo Grande

SUBJECT: Consideration of Budget Appropriation and Authorization to Acquire
Replacement Fire Chief Vehicle

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:
1) Approve a budget appropriation, allocating needed funding to purchase a replacement
vehicle for the Fire Chief from the Fund Balance.
2) Authorize the Fire Chief to execute needed agreements and purchases to acquire
replacement vehicle.

BACKGROUND

At the March 18, 2021 Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) Board of Director's meeting, action was
taken to add revenue from mutual aid response and the sale of a Ford Explorer command vehicle
to the Fund Balance. $130,000 was designated as “Restricted Fund Balance” for future vehicle
replacement. FCFA staff was planning on included a replacement vehicle for the Fire Chief
position in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget, but supply issues impacting the automotive industry
require the consideration of placing the order for the vehicle more quickly.

As the COVID-19 pandemic impacted the global economy, the demand for new automobiles
declined. The computer chip industry shifted production to support other industries including home
appliance, television, and computers (much of the world was sheltering in place and working from
home). Chevrolet has suspended orders for fleet vehicles, and last week Ford announced a
temporary shut-down of production for the Ford F-150 truck line. The recently grounded container
ship that blocked the Suez Canal delayed shipments of computer chips headed from Asia to

Europe.

With fire season rapidly approaching, a lack of reliable FCFA fleet vehicles, and an extended
delivery time for factory ordered vehicles, the need to acquire a replacement vehicle has been
reevaluated by the Fire Chief. FCFA and other local government agencies are able to purchase
fleet vehicles utilizing a pre-negotiated contract facilitated by the California Department of General

Services.

The proposed cost estimate for this project includes the acquisition of the vehicle, limited
emergency lighting, radio equipment and graphics. The estimated project cost is $60,000.00. This
is only an estimate at this time, actual costs could be less and this amount is to be considered a
“not to exceed” funding amount. The estimated project cost is summarized below:



Chevrolet Tahoe 4 Wheel Drive SUV $42,000

Emergency Lighting / Radio Equipment $16,000
Graphics / Miscellaneous/Contingency $ 2,000
Total (Not to Exceed) $60,000

FISCAL IMPACT
The fund balance (restricted vehicle replacement) will be reduced by $60,000.00, and expenditure
line item 6301 (Vehicles) will be increased by $60,000.00
ALTERNATIVES
The following alternatives are provided for the Board’s consideration:
1. Approve the resolution approving a budget appropriation request in the amount of

$60,000, and authorizing the Fire Chief to acquire a replacement vehicle.
2. Direct staff to include this purchase in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget.

3. Do not approve the staff recommendation and provide other direction.
ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution

PREPARED BY
Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief
Nicole Valentine, Acting Treasurer/Accounting Manager for City of Arroyo Grande

Staff Report. Consideration of Budget Appropriation and Authorization to Acquire Replacement Vehicle
April 16, 2021 Page 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE FIVE CITIES FIRE
AUTHORITY APPROVING BUDGET APPROPRIATION AND
AUTHORIZATION TO ACQUIRE REPLACEMENT FIRE CHIEF
VEHICLE

WHEREAS, at the March 19, 2021 Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) Board of Director's
meeting, action was taken by the Board to add revenue from the mutual aid response and
the sale of a Ford Explorer command vehicle to the Fund Balance, and

WHEREAS, $130,000 was designated as “Restricted Fund Balance” for future vehicle
replacement, and

WHEREAS, FCFA staff was planning on including a replacement vehicle for the Fire Chief
position in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget, but due to supply issues impacting the
automotive industry, consideration of placing an order for the vehicle was expedited, and

WHEREAS, supply issues impacting the automotive industry require the consideration of
placing the order for the vehicle more quickly, and

WHEREAS, with fire season rapidly approaching, a lack of reliable FCFA fleet vehicles, and
an extended delivery time for factory ordered vehicles, the need to acquire a replacement
vehicle has been reevaluated by the Fire Chief and is being requested at this time, and

WHEREAS, the FCFA is able to purchase fleet vehicles utilizing a pre-negotiated contract
facilitated by the California Department of General Services, and

WHEREAS, the proposed cost estimate for this project is $60,000.00 which includes the
acquisition of the vehicle, limited emergency lighting, radio equipment and graphics.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Five Cities Fire Authority Board does hereby
approve the purchase of one Chevrolet Tahoe 4 Wheel Drive SUV vehicle in the amount of
$60,000.00 and authorizes the Fire Chief to enter into any and all agreements necessary to
consummate the sale on behalf of the Authority. The Board hereby furthers appropriation of
said funding for the subject vehicle.

BE IT ALSO RESOLVED that the Clerk to the Board shall certify the passage and adoption
of this Resolution and enter it into the book of original Resolutions.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-02
PAGE 2

On motion by , seconded by , and by the following roll call
vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted at the regular meeting of the Board of the
Five Cities Fire Authority, this 16th day of April, 2021.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-02
PAGE 3

KEITH STORTON, CHAIR

ATTEST:

TRICIA MEYERS, CLERK TO THE BOARD

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

STEPHEN C. LIEBERMAN, FIRE CHIEF

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

DAVID P. HALE, GENERAL COUNSEL

OFFICIAL CERTIFICATION

I, TRICIA MEYERS, Clerk to the Board of the Five Cities Fire Authority, County of San Luis
Obispo, State of California, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that Resolution No.
2021-02 is a true, full, and correct copy of said Resolution passed and adopted at the regular
meeting of the Board of the Five Cities Fire Authority on the 16th day of April 16, 2021.

WITNESS my hand and the Seal of the Five Cities Fire Authority affixed this 16th day of April,
2021.

TRICIA MEYERS, CLERK TO THE BOARD



» qiﬁl"rlg
=y
ﬁé‘?f/ﬂ :

i
— STAFF REPORT

TO: Chair and Board Members MEETING DATE: April 16, 2021
FROM: Stephen Lieberman, Fire Chief / Executive Officer

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Purchasing Policy for the Five Cities Fire Authority

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the attached Purchasing Policy
specifically for the use of the Authority to acquire equipment, goods and services.

BACKGROUND

Since the inception of the Five Cities Fire Authority (‘Authority”) in 2010, the Authority has been
using the Purchasing Policies of the City of Arroyo Grande. The City of Arroyo Grande, City of
Grover Beach and the Oceano Community Service District entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement (“the Agreement”) in 2010 to establish the Authority. The Agreement requires the
Authority to use the policies of Arroyo Grande until such time as the Authority adopts its own
procedures. Section 4, subsection D (3) states, “City of Arroyo Grande Personnel Regulations
and other policies and procedures shall apply to the Authority and its employees until replacement
regulations, policies and procedures are adopted by the Authority.

Section 5 of the Agreement, sets forth the general powers of the Authority. Subsection M of
Section 5 states the Authority shall have the powers to “Adopt rules, regulations, policies, bylaws
and procedures governing the operation of the Authority.” Staff submits the attached purchasing
policy is necessary and vital to the continued and effective operations of the Authority and is more
adapted to the immediate needs of the Authority.

The purchasing policy provides guidance and procedures to be used by Authority employees to
obtain quality supplies, services, vehicles, and equipment required for proper operation of the Fire
Authority at the lowest price. The lowest price is not always the sole factor in evaluating the value
of purchases. This policy establishes that service, quality, timelines, and price are all factors for
evaluating the value of purchases.

These policies and procedures are designed to ensure that purchases made by Authority staff
comply with State, as well as Fire Authority requirements. These policies and procedures do not
contain or repeat State requirements, nor is this proposed policy intended to conflict with or
supersede State requirements. Inthe event of any conflict between these policies and procedures
and State law or Five Cities Fire Authority Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, the more stringent
requirement shall control.



FISCAL IMPACT
There is no specific fiscal impact related to the Boards adoption of the attached purchasing
policy.
ALTERNATIVES
The following alternatives are provided for the Board’s consideration:
1. Adopt the attached purchasing policy and give staff direction to implement these
policies for further acquisition of equipment, goods and services,
2. Do not adopt these purchasing policies and continue to use the City of Arroyo

Grande'’s purchasing policies, or
3. Provide other direction to staff.

ATTACHMENTS

1. “Draft” Five Cities Fire Authority Purchasing Policies
PREPARED BY

D. Hale, General Counsel
S. Lieberman, Fire Chief/Executive Officer

Staff Report: Consideration of Adoption of Purchasing Policies Page 2
April 16, 2021



PURCHASING POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES MANUAL

Revised March 2021



CONTENTS

1. IDITOAUCHION ... ottt ettt e e bbb e s s bbb e s st ees s se et et essssseas s memeenesensesaseeasesssenssnnseanesessesseseasssenenesss
11 Legal Basis
II1. EHBICS vttt ittt es sttt e e e et e e e e e a bR A b oA SR e b et s st s ane en e e e e eesen et e ae et et e en st eennesseesensean

Confidential Information
Employee Interest in Supplies/Contractors.....
Standards and Ethics.........c.ccceevvieeeieeceeiieeeeceene
Gifts AN REDALES.......cvneiiiriierrerrec et sttt eas e et ees s s s s eaeemenoes e s eeeseasseetassnsssssssanensemsessemesesessesessa 4
Vendor-Paid Meals ......ccorvveerrrnrireernnnns .
Purchasing for Personal Use Prohibited ...............oco.oieiiiiiincninininesieecneisnies e ceen s ss st ee s eeease s eenes s

MO 0w

V. General Policies and DefINitions ..........c.covvevierieiiniirinsecrmeersesieresssseseeseeseerasssenns S IR

PURCHASING CATEGORIES ......cococtieeenrirneerreiininieeesensssesseseeteseessesnenseresesasss TR ..o e s
A Petty Cashi........ceeieiiccec et sn st beaa e aea e e N
B Minor Purchases Less Than $2,500.00. .........ouereuierieeiiieiiieeeereeeeeseeee i eeeeeeeene et eesesseens

C. General Purchases Greater than $2,500.00. ...

D Major PUIChEses .........cccccoiicenircee e seeenssenaes

E Professional Services....

F.  PUblC ProJEct CONMTACES wvvviircriviisririseiisiscscosaiatetssseresessesene st assesrassssassssesessssssssebessssesessmesensemee Lot ioe e eeetenessssesssssssesssssns

VI MiSCEllaNEOUS PrOVISIONS ......oceeeiieeeieemeeie ettt ese e et e s sevaeneesnseesn s snneans

A Employee Responsibilities
B. Recyeling.....cccommeeinnicinennens
C. Sole Source Procurement
D. Cancellations
E. Stockless Purchasing .......
F.  Specific Blanket Contracts ...
G. Inventory......ccecvcrnrenionn
VIL Insurance Requirements ....
A Insurance Requirements. i ool A6 By AU 11
B. Worker’s Compensation lnsulam,e .............. T . .12
C Professional Liability Insurance .. W12
D. ENdOrSEmMENnts. i, it eemeererenrene e resasasssansesasssasansnsis i senessessiesisennnrnasrseranrssaseraens 12
VIII. Requests for Proposals/QUaEIGALIONS ...... .....ccoiiiieieciin e vteeneiesene et te s et eeeeeeseneeesess e e et esasateseressees e seas 13
A T goTs FITCRTaTi i SO, . - OO OO OO OO TSSO 13
B Form of RFP/RFQ .. - . ... 14
C. RFP/RFQ Procedulce . B 1ttt st s s et et et s r et e aeen e e Re e s b e R e anaat b s ma st seee s erce s srrenanes .15
D. Submission of Requneme.ﬂts to Board.. .............................................................................................. .16
E Sehicitation of Bids............... PE— .16
F Biddet’s Security Deposit. gt R A0S T e i i A8 S SRl e o4 o054 01 90414 Ya 20 48408 48 5m 0t o8 B0 ee 8800 em e e e et bOneeemn st sanans 16
G Execution of Contract............ ... e p T TV Ve ET ST oA ETR T o £ neme s ame s eaca e teses svrevatosvasi s omss s sasntaesessnsmenseamoms 16
IX. Formal Bidding Pracedures
A. Submission of Requirements to Board................ .16
B. Solicitation of Bids.. .16
C. Submission and Review of BIdS .................................................................................................... 16
D. Bidder's SecUrity DEPOSIt..........uiuniiiiiiii e et e e e et e e e ee e 17
E. EXECULION Of COMIIACE. .. eeuvininirise ittt et et et et et e e s e ee b e e taeas s e e reeneaeeses s aeneen 17
X. Emergency Purchasing POLCY ... ...cccunuiiiiii i i st e et e ettt et e e e e et eens 17
17



I. INTRODUCTION

The Five Cities Fire Authority (“Fire Authority”) was formed pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement (“JPA”) dated June 7, 2010 between the City of Arroyo Grande, the City of Grover Beach, and
the Oceano Community Services District. The Fire Authority is administered by a governing board (“the

Board™).

Since its inception, the Fire Authority has utilized the purchasing policies of the City of Arroyo Grande.
The Fire Authority has now determined that an updated Purchasing Pelicies and Procedures Manual is
necessary to ensure that the organization has the flexibility it needs to enable its staff to make the purchases
and requisitions necessary for its operations and to ensure that there is adeguate structure and record
keeping for oversight and accountability. The Fire Authority is promulgating this. policy in accordance
with Section 5, subsection “M” of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, creating the Five Cities Fire
Authority dated June 7, 2010.

The basic purchasing policy is to obtain quality supplies, services, vehicles, and equipment required for
proper operation of the Fire Authority at the lowest price. It is recognized that the lowest price is not the
sole factor in evaluating the value of purchases. Service, quality, timeliness, and price are all factors for
evaluating the value of purchases.

These policies and procedures are designed to ensure that purchases made by the Fire Authority staff
comply with State, as well as Fire Authority requiréments. These policies and procedures do not contain
or repeat State requirements, nor 1is it intended to cenflict with or supersede State requirements. In the
event of any conflict between these policies and procedures and State law or Five Cities Fire Authority
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, the more stringent requirement shall control.

II. LEGAL BASIS

Section 5 of the JPA provides that the Fire Authority “...is authorized, in its own name, to do all acts
necessary for the exercise of said powers for said purposes.” Included within Section 5 of the Joint Exercise
of Powers Agreement, are the express powers of the Fire Authority that include the powers to “...contract
for the services of engineers, attorneys, planners, financial and other necessary consultants.... Acquire,
lease, construct, own, manage, maintain, dispose of or operate (subject to the limitations herein) any
buildings, works or improvements.... Acquire, hold, manage, maintain, or dispose of any other property
by any lawful means, including without limitation, gift, purchase, eminent domain, lease, lease-purchase,
license or sale.... Adopt rules, regulations policies, bylaws and procedures governing the operation of the
Authority.” Section 4(E)(2)(g) of the JPA provides that the Fire Chief has the authority to approve
expenditures of up to $50,000.00 without the Board’s approval.



These purchasing policies and procedures are based on the expressed powers provided by Section 5 of the
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement and other pertinent provisions of that agreement.

III. ETHICS

A. Confidential Information

Information furnished by suppliers and/or contractors in open market bidding regarding price, terms,
performance specifications or other data will be held confidential until after award for purchase. This shall
not apply to public bid openings. After award of bid, all papers pertaining to a transaction are public
information and will be available for review upon request by an interested person, unless good cause exists
for a bidder to specifically request that certain proprietary information (under patent, trademark, or

copyright) not be released.
B. Employee Interest in Supplies/Contractors

No Fire Authority employee who participates in the selection or approval of a contract for products, sources
of supply, specifications or who has supervisory tesponsibility for such employees, shall have any financial
interest in the company which furnishes the supplies or services being procured.

C. Standards and Ethics

The very highest ethical standards will be maintained in all purchasing activities. All purchasing shall be
in accord with appropriate rules of the Fire Authority and the State of California Government Code, as well
as the standards of good business practice.

D. Gifts and Rebates

Every officer and employee of the Fire Authority are expressly prohibited from accepting any rebate, gift,
money, or anything of value whatsoever, when it could be perceived in any way as intent to influence the
employee in his/her official capagity.

Officers and employees may accept token advertising items (e.g. pens, hats, coffee mugs, etc.) so long as
the value remains below mandated disclosure limits set by the Fair Political Practices Commission limits
for gifts for the current year. - Additionally, other gifts may only be accepted when approved by the Fire
Chief and shared with other employees in the department. Gifts accepted by the Fire Chief shall not exceed
the Fair Political Practices Commission’s gift limitations.

Any and all rebates that are given in the regular course of business will be turned over to the Fire Chief.
The Fire Chief will use the rebates in a way that maximizes utility for the Fire Authority.



E. Vendor-Paid Meals

Vendor-paid meals may be accepted in limited circumstances. There are times when it is acceptable for a
Fire Authority employee to accept a meal paid for by a vendor. Every officer and employee of the Fire
Authority are expressly prohibited from accepting any meal, when it could be perceived in any way as
intent to influence the employee in his/her official capacity.

Employees may only accept a vendor-paid meals if the following criteria are met:
e Vendor is in attendance.
o There is a legitimate business purpose to the meeting with the vendor.
e The meal is for the convenience of the participants or process.
e The meal is promptly reported to your manager.
e The meal is valued under the Fair Political Practiges Commission’s disclosure limits for the
current year. B
e No alcoholic beverages are paid for by the yendor.

F. Purchasing for Personal Use Prohibited

Purchases shall not be made for any Fire Autho.rity employee’s personal use using the Fire Authority's
procurement personnel, facilities, processes or.accounts.

IV. GENERAL POLICIES AND DEFINITIONS

A. GENERAL POLICIES

The basic purchasing policy of the Fire Authority is to obtain supplies, services, vehicles, and equipment
needed for the proper operation of its vartous departments/divisions at the lowest possible cost. This will
be accomplished through the use of quotes, and competitive bidding whenever possible (or required). The
purchasing functions are decentralized, with each department/division responsible for compliance with Fire
Authority policies and procedures. The following is a summary of the policies and procedures established

herein;

e No purchase will be approved or undertaken unless an appropriation has been established through
either the adopted annual budget by the Board or approval of additional appropriations as an
amendment to the annual budget.

e All purchases shall be of the quality necessary to suit the intended purpose of the purchase, shall
be suitable and beneficial to the Fire Authority, and shall be in the Fire Authority’s best interest.

e The dollar limits for purchases and bids are established by the Board. Purchases shall not be split
to avoid the required procedures or certain dollar limits.

o Where possible, the Fire Authority will consider the use of cooperative purchasing or blanket
contracts for goods and services, as such contract may provide savings.

5



» Receipt of goods or services will be verified and approved by the appropriate official prior to
payment of invoices.
e The emergency purchase of goods is authorized consistent with this Purchasing Policy Manual.

These purchasing policies and procedures will allow the Fire Authority to spend tax money and public
funds in the most prudent fashion. With a formal system of buying goods and services, including a
purchase order system, the Fire Authority clearly specifies what it buys, avoids disputes with vendors,
provides a full audit trail of purchases, allows level competition to set prices, controls spending within
budget limits, creates a positive tone for relationships with vendors, sets a professional standard of
organizational behavior, limits the possibility of waste, creates an orgamzed system of checks and balances,
enhances public trust, and gives the Fire Authority the opportunity to save money.

Budget:

The annual budget is an essential element of the financial planning, control, and evaluation process of the
Fire Authority. This annual budget is reviewed each fiscal year by the Board and is désigned as the
financial blueprint for the Fire Authority. Upon adoption, the budget serves as the ﬁnanclal operating plan
for the Fire Authority.

Amendments to the budget may be rev1ewed a:nd approved by the Board at any time during the fiscal year
of the Fire Authority.

Grant Funds:

Federal, State, or grant programs may require special conditions that are more stringent than Fire Authonty
procedures. It is the responsibility of the department accepting the grant to ensure that all grant provisions
are complied with.

B. DEFINITIONS

1. Open Market Purchase Procedure. The Open Market Purchase Procedure does not
involve any formal or informal solicitation and evaluation of competitive bids. The
Administrative Assistant and Fire Chief, or as delegated, shall use her/his judgment and
experience in making the decision.

2. Informal Bidding Procedure. The informal bidding Procedure is a cost-effective
competive process for canvassing the marketplace to identify vendors most likely to provide
appropriate supplies or services at a reasonable price and in an efficient manner. The
informal bidding procedure requires the Authority to solicit written, faxed, e-mailed or
verbal price quotations from a minimum of three (3) vendors. The solicitation may be either
written or verbal, as dictated by the circumstances and judgment of the purchasing and



contracting authority. The bid shall be awarded to the lowest bidder unless otherwise
defined within this policy.

3. Formal Bidding Procedure. Authority should follow the procedures within Section IX,
entitled Bidding Procedures.

4. Formal Request for Proposal Procedure. Authority should follow the procedures
within Section VIII, entitled Requests For Proposals/Qualifications.

5. Professional Services. Services of private architectural, landscape architectural,
engineering, environmental, land surveying, or construction project management firms.

6. Special Services. Includes accounting, administration, auditing, custodial, economics,
finance, insurance, labor relations, law, maintenance, mech?:ﬂics, medicine, planning,
science, technology, weed abatement, and other services which are incidental to the
operation of the Authority.

7. Piggy Back Contract. A contract entered into by the Fire Authority that is based upon
an existing pre-negotiated government contract that was entered into in accordance with
a competitive bidding process. and wherein the Fire Authority enters into the same or
substantially similar general terms of the prior governmental agreement for the same or
similar items, goods or services: Regquirements of this Purchasing Manual related to
competitive bidding procedures ca‘n_be waived if using a Piggy Back Contract approach.

PURCHASING CATEGORIES

A. Petty Cash

The petty cash fund may be used to reimburse Fire Authority employees for the direct and immediate
purchases of less than $50.00 per transaction. The goods and services that may be purchased are of minimal
costs including,. but not limited to, the following:

1. Freight and postal charges due upon delivery;

2. Purchase of materials, goods, supplies, equipment, or services needed for “immediate
use”; and
3. Reimbursement of employee travel/meeting expenses.

A “Petty Cash Voucher Form” must be completed by the person requesting petty cash and approved by
his/her Battalion Chief. A detailed receipt itemizing each charge must support all expenditures. Advances
of petty cash are permitted on a limited basis where the person will make the purchase and turn in the
receipt and unused funds within the same or next business day. Petty cash reimbursements should be
requested in a timely fashion but no later than two weeks after the purchase date. The Open Market
Purchasing procedure shall be used for this category of purchases.



B. Minor Purchases Less Than $2,500.00

All purchases over $100.00 requires a Purchase Authorization Form. Purchases of equipment, goods and
services valued at $2,500.00 or less do not require a purchase order but do require Battalion Chief approval.
Budgeted and unencumbered appropriations must be available prior to making any approved purchases.
All original invoices and/or receipts for such purchases must be authorized, documented, and processed by
a Battalion Chief. Battalion Chiefs may initiate purchases costing less than $2,501.00 without soliciting
proposals or using a purchase order except for recurring purchases. Purchases occurring on a regular
interval (e.g. monthly, quarterly, etc.) require a purchase order approved by the Fire Chief even if the
anticipated individual purchases may not meet the minimum $2,501.00 requiring a purchase order. The
Open Market Purchasing procedure shall be used for this category of purchases unless a Piggy Back
Contract is used. '

C. General Purchases Greater than $2,500.00

Purchases of equipment, goods and general services valued at $2.501.00 or more require the use of a
purchase order. General Purchases valued at $2,501.00 up to $49,999:99 require Fire Chief approval.

All general purchases in this category should include an Informal Bidding process unless a Piggy Back
Contract is used. The proposals shall be attached to the purchase order.

D. Major Purchases

For purchases of equipment. goods and services valued at $50,000.00 and over, the Fire Chief will submit
written specifications to the Board. The Board will then approve the specifications which will be submitted
to the Administrative Assistant Clerk who will prepare a public advertisement and open public bids. Except
where specifically stated otherwise within these procedures, the Formal Bidding procedure shall be used
unless a Piggy Back Contract is used.

E. Professional Services

Professional Services are those activities performed by a consultant who possesses a high degree of
expertise in a particular profession, such as an attorney, financial services such as equipment leases,
certified public accounitant, engineer, or an architect. There is no bidding requirement for this type of
service, since the consultant is being hired based on his/her qualifications, not on the lowest bid. Any
professional service agreement must have sufficient background analysis to support the contract. A
purchase order is to be issued after the contract is signed to facilitate budgetary control. Each agreement
must be properly executed and held on file by the Administrative Assistant Clerk.

The Fire Chief may approve up to $50,000.00 of professional services if funds were allocated for such a
contract in the original adopted budget or any amendment to the budget. Approval by the Board is required
for unbudgeted professional services contracts and any professional services contract with a value of
$50,000.00 or more. The Request for Proposal/Qualifications Procedure should be used.



F. Public Project Contracts

State law regulates the bidding procedures for contracts that qualify as “Public Projects.” The term
“Public Projects” includes all projects “...for the erection, improvement, painting, or repair of public
buildings and works... work in or about streams, bays, waterfronts, embankments, or other work for
protection against overflow... street or sewer work except maintenance or repair... and furnishing
supplies or materials for any such project, including maintenance or repair of streets or sewers.” When
the cost of a public project exceeds $5,000.00 the project must be awarded pursuant to the Formal

Bidding Procedure.

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Employee Responsibilities

Prepare standards and specifications._

Maintain lists of supplies and services ¥endors.

Make purchases in accordance with established policies and procedures.

Verify that a budget appropriation is available for the purchase.

Review goods and services received to ensure conformity with purchase order or contract.

Notify the Battalion Chief when a cost discrepancy or dissatisfaction with a good or service
arises. No bill should be processed for payment when the goods or services are unsatisfactory, or
if there is a price discrepancy between the originally quoted price and the bill received.

¢ Employee responsibilities are authorized by identified program responsibility documents.

B. Recycling

It is the poitcy of the Fire Authority to conserve and protect its natural resources. Therefore, the Fire
Authority shall purchase recycled goods whenever possible.

C. Sole Souree Procurement

Sole source procurement 18 any fransaction in which the services and/or supplies can be obtained only from
one source. The only justification for sole source procurement is when the contractor or supplier is the
sole provider of the service or product or when the contractor or supplier is the only source permitted to
provide a service or product because of a manufacturer’s agreement with the contractor or supplier as a
sole representative in a certain geographical area.

The justification for the need to use sole source procurement should be recorded in a memorandum
describing the reason for making a sole source purchase signed by the Fire Captain, Battalion Chief, or
Fire Chief depending on the category of purchase.



D. Cancellations

The Fire Captain, Battalion Chief, or Fire Chief, according to the purchase category, may cancel
an invitation for bids, a request for proposal, or other solicitation, and may reject in whole or in
part, any and all bids or proposals when it is determined that cancellation or rejection serves the
best interest of the Fire Authority.

E. Stockless Purchasing

Stockless purchasing is a specialized technique providing for the purchase of a commodity or
service at an agreed price, but in quantities delivered and paid foras-needed by the Fire Authority.
The vendor owns the inventory and the Fire Authority has no responsibility for that inventory.

Stockless purchasing is recommended as an alternative to maintaining significant inventories of
supplies used by numerous departments and offices.

Stockless purchasing uses a blanket contract that designates approximate quantities, specified time
periods, prices, provisions for price adjustments, delivery, billing procedures and a catalogue of
items covered by the contract. By shifting inventory requirements to the supplier, the Fire
Authority is able to conserve public funds and to dispense with the storage of certain supply items
until requisitioned for delivery by the user department. The types of items typically purchased
under stockless purchasing include office supplies, maintenance and repair parts, and operating
items.

F. Specific Blanket Contraets®

A specific blanket contract includes. items, prices, quantities, and time frames. It is based upon
established prices for supplies, either-picked up by or delivered to the Fire Authority. A contract
of this type offers major price advantages over small individual purchases made by separate
departments. The Fire Chief approves all blanket contracts.

G. Inventory
A fixed asset mventory shall be kept by fire administration. Every purchase of a furnishing,

vehicle, or piece of equipment (with a value equal to or greater than $500.00) should be recorded
in a fixed asset inventory which includes the cost, date of acquisition, condition, and other pertinent

information.

10



VII. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Below are the minimum insurance requirements; however, the requirements may vary in
accordance with the type and size of project which would require a higher limit of liability as
recommended. The Fire Chief'is also authorized to waive insurance requirements wherein his sole
discretion circumstances warrant such action.

A. Insurance Requirements

Parties must secure all required policies from a good and responsible company or companies
authorized to do insurance business in the State of California, and possessing a Best’s rating of no
less than A-:VII, and fumish to the Fire Authority copies of certificates of insurance with
endorsements on or before the commencement of the term of any agreement. Parties must agree
to ensure that the most current certification of insuraneg is on file: with the Fire Authority at all
times during the term of any agreement. Any deductible o1 self:insured retention must be declared
and approved by the Fire Authority. At the Fire Authority’s option, parties shall demonstrate
financial capability for payment of such deductibles or self-insured retentions.

Parties performing services for the Fire Authotity shall procure and maintain at their own expense,
during the term of the agreement, commercial general liability insurance of not less than One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) ¢ombined single limit per oeccurrence, and Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000) in the aggregate, for bodily injury, personal injury, advertising injury, death, loss or
damage resulting from the wrongful or negligent acts.of the parties or their officers, employees,
servants, volunteers, subcontractors and agents doing work on behalf of the Fire Authority. Parties
shall provide insurance on an oeeurrence, not elaims-made basis, and for purposes of clarification
with the intention of avoiding gaps in coverage with any umbrella or excess insurance, personal
and advertising injury coverage shall be triggered by an “offense” while bodily injury and property
damage coverage shall be triggered by an “occurrence” during the policy period.

Parties performing services for the Fire Authority shall procure and maintain at their own expense,
during the term of the agreement, commercial vehicle liability insurance coverage personal injury
and property damage, of not less than One million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident combined
single limit, and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate, covering any vehicle utilized
by the parties or their officers, employees, servants, volunteers, subcontractors and agents
performing the services required by the agreement or less with the express written approval from

the Fire Authority.

All parties must require that all contractors (including but not limited to subcontractors, architects,
engineers or any other third party with whom the parties enter into contracts, or whom the parties
hire or retain in any way related to the performance of the agreement) provide, at minimum, the
same insurance coverage required of the parties, and name the Fire Authority and the parties as
additional insureds to each policy. Parties must agree to monitor and review the insurance policies

11



of contractors, and agree to assume all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided
in conformity with all requirements.

All parties must agree that, if any contract or other agreement which requires insurance coverage
to be in place, is terminated for any reason prior to the completion of all obligations and
requirements of the agreement, then the parties shall maintain all required coverages until the Fire
Authority provides written authorization to terminate the coverages following the Fire Authority’s
review and determination that all liability posed under the agreement as to the parties providing
insurance has been eliminated.

All parties must agree and acknowledge that if they fail to obtain all of the required insurance, or
to obtain and ensure that the coverage required is maintained by any contractor or other third
parties involved in any way with the performance of the agreement, then the parties shall be
responsible for any losses, claims, suits, damages, defense obligations, or Liability of any kind or
nature incurred by the Fire Authority or its officers, employees, servants, volunteers,
subcontractors and agents doing work on the behalf of the Fire Authority.

B. Worker’s Compensation Insurance

All parties subject to Worker’s Compensation laws (generallv, any party with one or more
employees) shall procure and maintain at their own expense, during the term of the agreement,
Workers’ Compensation insurance providing coverage as required by the California State
Workers’ Compensation Law, and must agtee that if any class of employees employed by the
parties is not protected by the California State Workers® Cempensation Law, then the parties shall
provide adequate insurance for the protection ‘of such employees to the satlsfactlon of the Fire
Authority. Additionally. parties must agree to waive their statutory immunity under any Workers’
Compensation or similar statute, as respecting the Fire Authority, and to require any and all
contractors, third parties, and any other person or entity involved in the performance of the
agreement to do the same. Any party that 1s not subject to California Workers® Compensation law
must agree to execute a certificate attesting to the satisfaction of the Fire Authority.

C.  Professional Liabjlity Insurance

All parties performing design or professional services shall procure the above-mentioned policies
in addition to a prefessional liability policy. Such parties shall procure and maintain at their own
expense, during the term of the agreement, professional errors and omissions liability insurance
for protection against claims alleging negligent acts, errors or omissions which may arise from the
parties’ performance of the agreement, whether by the parties themselves or by their employees,
subcontractors, or sub consultants, to the extent such person other than the parties are permitted to
perform the agreement. Parties must agree that the amount of this insurance provided by such
policy shall not be less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim.

D. Endorsements

All parties must agree that, notwithstanding any inconsistent statement in any required insurance
policies or any subsequent endorsements attached thereto, the protection offered by all policies,

12



except for workers’ compensation, professional liability or errors or omissions, shall bear an
endorsement whereby it is provided that the Fire Authority and its officers, employees, servants,
volunteers, subcontractors, attorney and agents doing work on behalf of the Fire Authority,
including without limitation, the Fire Chief, are named as additional insureds, and that all
additional insureds shall be entitled to the full benefit of all insurance policies in the same manner
and to the same extent as any other insureds without limitation to the benefits conferred upon
them other than policy limits as to coverages.

All parties must agree to require that the carriers of all required insurance policies waive their
rights of subrogation against the Fire Authority and its officers, volunteers, employees, attorney,
contractors and subcontractors.

All parties must agree to require that each policy be endorsed to provide that the policy shall not
be cancelled or reduced in coverage (except by paid claims) unless the insurer has provided the
Fire Authority with thirty (30) day prior written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.

All parties must agree to require that each policy be endorsed to provide that the policy shall apply
on a primary and noncontributing basis in relation to any insurance or self-insurance, primary or
excess, maintained or available to the Fire Authority, and its officers, employees, servants,
volunteers, subcontractors and agents doing work on behalf of the Fire Authority.

All parties must agree to require that each -policy: bear an endorsement stating that any failure to
comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage provided to the Fire
Authority, its elected or appointed of officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers.

VILI. REQUESTS
FOR
PROPOSALS/QUALIFICATIONS

A. Introduction

A Request for Proposal (“RFP”) or a Request for Qualifications (“RFQ™) are forms of solicitation
for proposals from potential service providers of professional, unique, or technical services. An
RFP or RFQ should be used to solicit contracts when specifications and price are not the
predominant award criteria.

An RFP or RFQ should be used to contract for professional services or advice in financial,
economic, accounting, legal, engineering, architectural, environmental, land surveying, technical,
or administrative matters, and for the acquisition of unique or equipment in circumstances where:

1. The evaluation of the services sought is based on technical or professional ability;
2. The evaluation of the services sought is based on artistic and/or aesthetic value;
3. Price or cost is a secondary consideration in selecting the service or product; or

13



B.

4.

The advantages of a particular vendor outweigh any price differences.

Form of RFP/RFQ

An RFP or RFQ should contain as much detail as possible regarding the scope of services or the
product sought. The content of an RFP or RFQ will vary for each product but should include:

b N

A precise description of the problem or objective;

The services to be performed,;

The product to be provided;

The anticipated schedule, including dates and times, for the: submittal of proposals; any
pre-proposal conferences; awarding the contract; commencement of work on the project;
and the completion of the project;

Expectations or limitations set by the Fire Authority such as the format, form, and
quantity of any expected reports and the extent-of any assistance that will be provided by
the Fire Authority; _

Expectations of the content of proposals including:

T ER e e g R

An overall description of techniques to be used;

A listing of similar services provided to other clients;

Contact information for a reference;

Time estimates;

Staffing estimates;

Facilities and equipment to be used,

The portions of the contract to be performed by subcontractors;

Subcontractor gualifications;

Total cost and desired method of payment;

Contract term requirements such as prohibitions against assignment;
indemnificatien; insurance requirements; bond requirements; and warranties;
compliance with federal, state; and local laws, rules, and regulations; compliance
with any grant refated regulations, and a sample contract; and

The factors that will be considered in determining whether to award the contract.

14



C. RFP/RFQ Procedures
1. Preparation of RFP/RFO

The personnel desiring to obtain goods or services requiring an RFP/RFQ shall prepare the
RFP/RFQ. All RFPs/RFQs will then be submitted to the Fire Chief. The Fire Chief can approve
any RFPs/RFQs valued up to $50,000.00 and will submit RFPs/RFQs valued at greater than
$50,000.00 for approval by the Fire Authority Board.

2. Submission of RFP/RFQ

Upon approval of the RFP/RFQ, the RFP/RFQ will be sent to at leas.t'\tifizigﬁe. (3) potential
candidates or, if necessary, posted publicly.

3. Submission of Proposals

Proposals shall be submitted by 5:00 p.m. on the designated closing day. No information can be
distributed to respondents until all responses have been reviewed and the contract is awarded.
Respondents may modify or withdraw their proposals prior to 5:00 p.m. on the closing day.
Modifications submitted after this time will be'rejected and returned to the respondent.

Fire Authority staff may conduct conferences to explain the requirements of the project. A
sufficient amount of time should be allowed after the RFP/RFQ has been issued to allow potential
respondents to become familiar with the project. Any clarification or changes required to the
RFP/RFQ as a result of the conference shall be added as a written amendment. A summary of the
conference shall be provided to all prospective respondents receiving the request.

Any amendments to RFPs/RFQs shall be made in writing and submitted to all known candidates.
If necessary, the closmig date can be extended to accommodate such amendments.

4. Rgx\'fiaew of Proposals

Proposals shall be received by Fire Administration. Proposals shall be time-stamped and retained
in a secure location until the established closing date and time. The Fire Chief will review
proposals and determine the award. For contracts valued at over $50,000.00 the Fire Chief will
submit the Fire Chief’s top three choices to the Fire Authority Board along with the Fire Chief’s
recommendation. The Fire Authority Board shall then award the contract. All contracts for
professional services shall be approved by the Fire Authority General Counsel.

The Fire Chief shall evaluate each proposal based on the factors stated in the RFP/RFQ. Factors
not specified in the RFP/RFQ will not be considered.

The contents of the proposal shall remain confidential until the contract is awarded or all proposals
are rejected. The proposals shall then be maintained as public records.

15



IX. Formal Bidding Procedures

These formal bidding procedures shall be utilized whenever a potential contract requires formal
bidding, including Major Purchases and those contracts that constitute “Public Works.”

A. Submission of Requirements to Board

The Fire Chief shall submit proposed specifications for a contract requiting formal bidding to the
Fire Authority Board. The Board will vote to authorize the solicitation ot bids.

B. Solicitation of Bids

Upon approval from the Fire Authority Board, Fire Administration shall prepare the notice to invite
bids. The notice shall be published at least twice, not less than five days apatt, in a newspaper of
general circulation, printed and published in the Fire Authority’s jurisdiction, or if there is none,
posted in at least 3 public places. The notice shall distinctly state the project to be done. The first
notice must be published at least 10 days before the Fire Autherity begins accepting bids.

The notice will include instructions on submitting bids to the Fite Chief’s administrative assistant,
an overview of the work to be performed, estimated costs, any special conditions or requirements
for the work, and the types of licenses required for the work.

C. Submission and Review of Bids

Bids will be submitted to Fire Administration. Bid proposals must be signed by an authorized
agent of the bidder and mast identify all subcontractors that will perform work on the project.

The Fire Chief will present the lowest bids to the Fire Authority Board. The Fire Authority Board
may reject any and all bids presented and advertise. The Fire Authority Board shall select the
lowest bidder unless deciding on an RFP/RFQ which requires consideration of other factors.

Once the Fire Authority selects and approves a bid, Fire Administration will notify the winning
bidder. '

D. Bidder’s Security Deposit

For “Public Projects™ and any other project the Fire Authority Board decides, all bidders must
submit a security deposit that is at least 10 percent of the total bid.

E. Execution of Contract

After notifying the winning bidder, Fire Administration will arrange to have a contract prepared
and executed by the Fire Chief and the winning bidder. The proposed contract will be reviewed
by the Fire Authority attorney. The winning bidder will post a surety bond for the full value of the

contract.

16



X. Emergency Purchasing Policy

An emergency situation exists when a sudden unexpected incident poses a clear and imminent
threat to public health, safety, property, and/or essential public services. The Fire Chief and
General Counsel shall be contacted for concurrence that an emergency situation exists. The Fire
Chief shall be contacted for concurrence, regardless of whether the situation occurs during
regular business hours or not. Once the Fire Chief concurs, the department or person purchasing
the goods or services shall take appropriate action and make any purchase of goods and/or
services deemed necessary to mitigate the emergency.

If the normal bidding process has been waived, an initial report of the waiver and the emergency
must be made to the Board by the department or individual so-authorized at the next regular
Board meeting,.

XI. Contract Management

The Fire Authority will administer all contracts, control payvments, provide contract extensions,
maintain a procurement file. and approve any changes in products or services. The quality and
quantity of goods shall be inspected before any payments are made. Contract management shall
be the responsibility of the personnel placed in charge of the contract, but can be assigned by the
Fire Chief.

A file shall be maintained for each contract. Whenever goods are received by the Fire Authority

pursuant to a contract, the receiving personnel shall keep a written record in the contract file of
such receipt. Contract files shall be maintained in Fire Administration.

17



